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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China - Pakistan Branches

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China — Pakistan Branches
('the Branches’), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Branches’ affairs as at December 31, 2027 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Branches in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Beard for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities in accordance

with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the and Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Branches, we have been advised by management that
there is no other information that is attached by them along with the financial statements and our auditor's report
therean, therefore, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Branches' ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Branches or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Branches' financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable agsurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audlt in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Branches' internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt onthe Branches’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our concluslons are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or canditions may cause the Branches to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Branches as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017;

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in accordance with the
objects and powers of the Branches and the transactions of the Branches which have come to our notice have
been within the powers of the Branches; and
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d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVi!l of 1980), was deducted by the
Branches and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

2. We confirm that for the purpese of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total loans and
advances of the Branches.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Branches as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by another

firm of Chartered Accountants, who had expressed an unmodified opinion an those statements vide their report dated
March 29, 2021.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil.

R

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Dated: March 30, 2022

UDIN: ARZ0211009TLWEswMzc1



industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investrments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets - net

Other assets

L1ABILITIES

Bills payable
Borrowings
Deposits and other accounis

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities - net

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Head office capital account

Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax
Unremitied profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i

/)

2

i
Chief Bxecutive Officer

Note

15
16
17

13
18

19
20

21

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

==~ (Rupees in '000) ~—-------~

37,703,444 31,226,025
23,331,975 2,497,170
44,289,040 187,430,652

445,777,512 | | 252,704,902
49,212,164 33,423,105

602,096 704,761
9,455 2,459
867,391 300,496
8,754,924 6,815,787
610,548,001 515,105,357
1,458,127 2,425,126
390,977,403 325,902,342
155,302,046 119,301,294
8,849,150 19,162,748

556,586,726 466,791,510
53,961,275 48,313,847
26,477,025 23,975,160
(1,651,302) (603,210}
29,135,552 24,941,897
53,961,275 48,313,847

47

Head of Finance




Industrial and Commercial Bank of China LLimited - Pakistan Branches

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2021

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income
Dividend income

Foreign exchange income

Income / (loss) from derivatives
Loss on securities

Other income

Total non-markup / interest income

Total income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses

Workers Welfare Fund

Other charges
Total non-markup / interest expenses

Profit before provisions
Provisions and write offs - net
Extra ordinary / unusual items
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements,

V-

Chief Et:cutive Officer

Note

22
23

24

25

26

27
28
29

30

31

2021

2020

(Rupees in "000) --—-———----

37,188,805 50,601,065
30,882,139 34,999,460
6,306,666 15,601,605
1,414,576 1,061,607
2,266,402 1,936,527
(115) -
13,756 3,634
3,694,619 3,001,768
10,001,285 18,603,373
2,144,455 1,424,419
151,082 336,151
14,854 -
2,310,391 1,760,570
7,690,894 16,842,803
157,950 43,041
7,532,944 16,799,762
3,338,831 6,791,857
4,194,113 10,007,805

HeL:d of Finance




industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2021

Profit after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that may be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent periods

Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax

{tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent periods

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan - net of tax

Total comprehensive income

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N

Ll

Y
Chief Bxecutive Officer

2021

2020

---------- (Rupees in '000) ——--—-

4,194,113 10,007,905
(1,048,092) (728,185)

(458) 754
(1,048,550) (727.431)
3,145,563 9,280,474

A4 ¢

Head of Finance




Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches
Statement of Changes in Equity
Forthe year ended Decembsar 31, 2021

Head office (Deficit) / .
. Surplus on Unremitted
capital . Total
revaluation of profit
account .
investments
(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at January 1, 2020 23,227,140 124,975 14,933,238 38,285,353
Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2020 - - 10,007,905 10,007,905
Other comprehensive (loss) / income - net of tax - (728,185) 754 {727 ,431)

- (728,185) 10,008,659 9,280,474
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Translation gain on revaluation of capital 748,020 - - 748,020
Balance as at December 31, 2020 23,975,160 (603,210) 24,941,897 48,313,847
Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2021 - - 4,194,113 4,194,113
Other comprehensive (loss) / income - net of tax - __(1,048,092) (488l (1,048,550)

- (1,048,092) 4,193,655 3,145,563
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Translation gain on revaluation of capital 2,501,865 - - 2,501,865
Balance as at December 31, 2021 26,477,028 (1,651,302) 29,135,552 53,961,275

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

7. 2y

Chief Execﬁe Officer Head of Finance




Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended December 31, 2021

CASHILOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments

Depreciation

Amortisation

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Finance cost against lease liability
Charge for defined benefit plan
Other income

Provisions and write offs - net

Decrease / (Increase) in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Advances

Other assets

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits

Other liabilities

Coniributions made to defined benefit plan
Income tax paid

Net cash flow generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investments in held to maturity securities
Net investments in available for sale securities
Invesiments in fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixad assets

Net cash flow used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease rental payments
Translation gain on revaluation of capital
Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Inerease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
MA

L

v
Chief Ekecutive Officer

Note

11
12
28
23
35.8.1

30

357

32

2021

2020

B -~ {Rupees in '000) ——-=-veem

7,532,944 16,799,762
129,298 105,976
1,937 4,383

(237) (209)

6,927 7,205

5,073 5,530
- (130)

157,950 43,041
7,833,892 16,965,538
143,141,612 27,072,896
(15,947,009) (4,303,862)
(1,936,669) (2,499,332)
125,257,934 20,269,702
(966,999) (1,700,208)
65,075,061 (25,339,716)
36,000,752 24,835,360
(9,782,670) 1,981,881
90,326,144 (222,683)
223,417,970 37,012,557
(8,246) (7,942)
(3,841,495) (6,835,503)
219,568,229 30,169,112
21,274,444 (1,149,758)
(215,959,504) {41,514,740)
(35,567) (26,696)

238 209
(194,720,389) (42,690,985)
(37,481) (127,710)
2,501,865 748,020
2,464,384 620,310
27,312,224 (11,901,563)
33,723,195 45,624,758
61,035,419 33,723,195

43

Heald of Finance




Industriai and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches
Notes to the Financial Statements -
For the year ended December 31, 20271

34

3.2

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Pakistan branches of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited ("the Branches") have commenced their operations

in Pakistan with effect from August 18, 2011. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited {'Head office") is incorporated in
the Peaple's Republic of China.

The Branches presently operate through three branches (December 31, 2020 three branches} in Pakistan and are engaged in
banking activities permissible under the Banking Companies Ordinance. 1962. The registered office of the Branches is located at

15th Floar, Ocean Tower, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi. The credit rating of the Head office is disclosed in note 33 to these financial
staternents.

BASIS OF PRESENTATICN

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BPRD Circular No. 2, dated January 25, 2018.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. These comprise of:

international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Inlernational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
nolified under the Companies Act, 2017,

Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP} and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) from
time 1o time.

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by

the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard {IAS} 38, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement' and International Accounting Standard (I1AS) 40, 'Investment Property' for Banking Companies in Pakistan through
BSD Circutar Letter no. 10 dated August 26, 2002 till further instructions. Further, the SECP has deferred the applicability of

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures' through its notification S.R.0 411(1)/2008
dated April 28, 2008.

Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements.

However, investiments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the State Bank of
Pakistan through various circulars.

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended December 31,
2021

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effeciive for the year ended Decembar 31, 2021, These standards,

amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Branches' operations or are not expected to have significant Impact
on the Branches' financial statements other than certain additonal disclosures:

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases’ - Covid-19 related to rent concessions. Effective from accouniing period beginning on or
after June 01, 2020.
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 18). Effective from
accounting period beginning on or after January 01, 2021.

Certain annual improvements have alse been made to a number of IFRSs.

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effactive for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendmants are either not relevant to tha Branches'

operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Branches' financial statements other than certain additicnal
disclosures:

Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ - Referance to the

conceptual framework January 01, 2022

Amendments to 1AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' -

Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets' - Onerous Contracis January 01, 2022

international Financial Reporting Standard - 9 "Financial instruments" January 01, 2022

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

(related to [FRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41) January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' -

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2023

Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -

Disclosure of accounting policies January 01, 2023

Amendments to 1AS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors' January 01, 2023

Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to

assels and liabilities arising from a single transaction. January 01, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Branches' accounting pericds
beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Branches' operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statamants.

As per SBP's BPRD Circular Letter no. 24 of 2021, IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ is applicabie to banks in Pakistan effective
from Jaruary 1, 2022. The aforementioned circular letter required banks to submit IFRS 9 compatible pro forma financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 and perform paraliel run of IFRS 9 on quarterly basis, Further, it was stated
that final instructions will be issued subsequently bagsed on the results of paralle! reporting of banks.

The impact of the application of IFRS 9 in Pakistan on the Branches' financial statements is being assessed and final
implementation guidelines are awaited.

Other than the aferesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB) has alsc issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan;
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4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

Except for the implementation of IFRS 8 in Pakistan, The Branches expects that adoption of the amendments to existing
accounting and reporting standards will not affect its financial statements in the period of initial application.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except available for sale investmenis and
forward foreign exchange contracts which have been measured at fair value and obilgations in respect of gratuity scheme which

are measured at present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of plan assets and lease liabilities which are
measured at their present value.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in

which the esfimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future perieds if the
revision affects beth current and future periods.

Significant accounting estimates and areas where critical judgements were made by the management in the application of
acccunting policies are as follows:

- depreciation and amortisation rates for fixed assets (note 5.7}

classification and provisioning against non-performing leans and advances (note 5.6)
- defined benefit plan (note 5.10}

- contingencies and commitments {note 21)

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Branches’ functional and presentation currency. The
amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and are consistent
with those of the previous financial year.

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow staternent comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks,
balances with other banks and overdrawn nostros.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial instifutions

The Branches enter into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are
recorded as under:

Sale of securities under repurchase agreement

Securities sold subject 10 a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the
counterparty liability is included in borrowings. The difference between the sale and contracted repurchase price is recognised on
time proportion basis over the period of the contract and recorded as an expense.



5.4

541

5.4.2

5.5

5.6

Purchase of securities under resale agreements

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial statements as investments and
the amount extended to the counterparty is included in lendings to financial institutions. The difference between the purchase and
contracted resale price is recognised on time proportion basis over the period of the contract and recorded as income,

Securities held as collateral are not recognized in the financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case
the obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability under borrowings from financial institutions.

Investments

Classification
The Branches classify investments as follows;

a) Held for trading

These are investments, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, interest

rate movements and dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.
These are carried at market value.

b} Held to maturity

These are invesiments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matusities and are held with the intent and ability 1o hald
them till maturity. These are carried at amortised cost.

c) Available for sale

These are investments which de not fall under ‘held for trading' or 'held to maturity' categories and are carried at market value.

The surplus / deficit arising as a result of revaluation at market value is included in equity. Market value of investments in
Government securities is determined based on the relevant PKRV rates.

Investments are initially recognized at fair value which, in the case of investments other than held for trading, includes transaction
costs associated with the investments. Transaction costs on investments held for trading are expensed as incurred.

All 'regutar way' purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the {ime frame established by regulation or

market convention are recognized at settlement date, which is the date at which the Branches agree to settle the purchase or
sale of investments.

Impairment

Provision for diminution in the value of debt securities is made as per the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in surplus /

{deficit) on revaluation of securities on the statement of financial positiun is removed therefrom and recagnised in the profit and
loss account.

Acceptances

Acceptances comprise of undertakings by the Branches to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Branches expects

most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with the reimbursement from the customers. Acceptances are accounted for as
on-kalance sheet transactions.

Advances

Advances are stated net of provisions against non-performing advances. Specific and general provisions are made in
accordance with the requiremenis of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time. The net
provision made / reversed during the year is charged to profit and loss account and accumulated provision is adjusted against
advances. Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery. The amount so written off is a book entry
and does not necessarily prejudice the Branches' right of recovery against the customer.
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57.2

57.3

5.7.4

The Branchas determine write-offs in accordance with the criteria presciibed by the SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 6 dated June 5,
2007.

QOperating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific

assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets
as and when assels become available for use.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account by applying the straight-line method using the rates specified in note 11 to
these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking into account residual value, if any. The
depreciation method, residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporling date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the date in which the assets become available for use while no depreciation Is charged
for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

Coslts of maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent costs are
included in the assets’ carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
econamic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Branches and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period to which it relates.

Leases

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to controf the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Branches mainly lease properties for its operations. The Branches recognize a right-of-use
asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the
useful life of right-of-use asset or end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis
as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment iosses, If any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Branches’ incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently Increased by the finance cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease paymaents arising from a change in an index or rate, a

change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain 1o be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Branches have elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term and low value assets. The
lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The
right-of-use assets are presented in the same line items as it presents undeilying assets of the same nature that it owns.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such intangible assets are ameriised using the straight-fine method over their estimated useful live as specified in note 12
to the financial statements. The useful lives and amostisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting
date. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at acquisition cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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5.11.2

impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Branches' non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its vatue in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated pre-tax future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respecl of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
ioss is reversed if thers has been a change in the estimates used to delermine the recoverable amount.

Borrowings / deposits and their cost
a) Borrowings / deposits are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received.

b) Costs of borrowings / deposits are recagnized as an expense in the pericd in which these are incurred using effective mark-
up / interest rate method to the extent that they are not directly attributable to the acquisition of or consftruction of qualifying
assets. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of a gualifying asset (one
that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined beneafit plan

The Branches operate an approved funded gratuity scheme covering eligible employees (excluding expatriates) whose period of
employment with the Branches is five years or more. Contributions to the fund are made on the basis of actuarial
recommendations. The Projected Unit Cradit Method is used for the actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are

recognised in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through profit and loss account. Gratuily is payable to
staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under the scheme.

Defined contribution plan

The Branches operate an approved Provident Fund fer ail of its permanant employees (excluding expatriates) in respect of which
contributions are made {o discharge liability under the respective rules of the schemes. Equal monthly contributions are made by
both the Branches and its employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary in accordance with the terms of the
scheme. The Branches have no further payment cbligation ence the contributions have been paid. The contributions are

racognized as an expense when the obligation to make payments ic the fund has been established. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities carried on the statement of financial posilion include cash and bank balances, lendings to financial
institutions, invesiments, advances, certain other receivables, bills payable, borrowings from financial institutions, deposits, and

certain other payables, The particular recognition methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed in the individual policy notes associated with them.

Derivalive financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair vatue on the date at which the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative instruments are carried as assets

where fair vaiue is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative. Any changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are taken o profit and loss account.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Branches intend either to settle on a net basis, or to rezalize the

assets and to settle the liabilities simultanecusly. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also off-set and the
net amount is reported in the financial statements.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevalling on the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denaominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from

the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in
profit and loss account,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevalling at the
date of initial recagnition of the non-monetary assets / liabilities.

Forward contracts are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective maturities of the relevant foreign exchange contract.

Forward contracts other than contracts with the State Bank of Pakistan relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at forward
rates applicable to the respactive maturities of the relevant foreign exchange contract.

Forward purchase contracts with the State Bank of Pakistan relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at the spot rate
prevailing on the reporting date. The forward cover fee payable on such contracts is amortised over the term of the contracts.

Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed at contracted rates. Contingent liabilities /

commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the
exchange rate prevailing at the raporting date.

Revenue recognition

Mark-up / return on advances and investments are recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorier period) to the carrying amount of the financlal asset or fiability.

Mark-up recoverable on classified loans, advances and investments is recognised on receipt basis In accordance with the
requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. Mark-up on rescheduled / restructured ioans,
advances and investments is also recognised in agcordance with the requirements of these Prudential Regulations.

Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, those premiums / discounts are amortised through profit and loss
account over the remaining maturity, using the effective interest method.

Fee and commission income is recognised upon performance of obligations. Fees for ongoing account management are charged

to the customer's account on monthly basis. Transaction based fees are charged to the customer's account when the transaction
fakes place.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of curreni and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit and loss account except ta
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive incomae.
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5,15.2

5.15.3

5.16

5.16.1

5.16.2

Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws and at
the prevailing rates for taxation on income earned by the Branches. The amount of curreni tax payable is the hest estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid that refiects uncerlainty related to income taxes, if any.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpeses and amounts used for the taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided reflects the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities using the tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset Is recognized only to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utitized. Deferred tax asset is reduced fo the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Provisions

Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty

exists for the Branches to settls the obligation. Expected recoveries are recognised from the customer's account. Charge to profit
and loss account is stated net of expected recoveries.

Other provisions are recognised when the Branches have a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and & reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclesed unless an inflow of sconomic henefits is probable. Contingent

fiabilities are not recognised but disclosed unless the probability of an cufflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits are
remote.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Branches that is engaged sither in providing product or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject

to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Branches' primary format of reporting is based on
business segments. The details are as follows:

Business segments

a) Treasury

Il includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securities, lending and repos,
brokerage debt and prime brokerage.

b} Branch Banking
i includes deposils and banking services to private individuals and businesses.

¢) Corporafte finance

This represents the banking services (on and off balance sheet finance and guarantees) including treasury and International

trade activilies to large corporate customers, multinational companies, Government and semi-Government departments and
institutions and SMEs treated as corporate under Prudential Reguiations.

There are no geographical segments as the Branches only operate in Pakistan.
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CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note 2021 2020
——re————— -- (Rupees in '000) ~--eemen-
In hand
Local currency 246,775 124,190
Foreign currencies 86,116 161,990
332,801 286,180
With State Bank of Pakistan in :
L.ocal currency current accounts 6.1&86.2 10,207,981 6,249,861
Foreign currency current account 127,972 115,880
Foreign currency deposit accounts 6.3 27,034,600 24,574,104
37,370,553 30,939,845
37,703,444 31,226,025

This includes statutory liquidity reserve maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under Section 22 of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962, This section requires branches to maintain a reserve in the current account opened with the SBP
at a sum not less than such percentage of its demand and time liabilities in Pakistan as may be prescribed by the SBP.

As per BSD Circular No. 20 dated November 13, 2021, cash reserve of 6% is required to be maintained with the State Bank of
Pakistan,

This includes speacial cash reserve of 10% required to be maintained with the SBP on FE-25 deposits as specified in BSD
Circular No. 08 dated April 20, 2020. Profit rates on these deposits are fixed by SBP on a monthly basis. These carry mark-up
at rate of 0.00% (2020: 0.0% to 0.76%). !t also includes capital maintained with SBP in accordance with the requirements of
Section 13 of Banking Coempanies Crdinance, 1962 amounting to USD 150 million (December 31, 2020 USD 150 million),

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

Note 2021 2020
e (Rupees in '000) ~——---
In Pakistan
In current aceount 3 1
Qutside Pakistan
In currant account 596,653 472,024
In depesit accounts 7.1 22,735,319 2,025,145
23,331,972 2,497,169
23,331,975 2 497,170

This represents balances with other ICBC branches outside Pakistan at interest rates ranging from 0.07% to 1% per annum
(December 31,2020: 0% to 0.85% per annum).

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTLONS Note 2021 2020

---------- {Rupees in '000) --—-—------

Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 8.1 44,289,040 187,430,652

These represent repurchase agreement lendings with various local banks at a mark-up rates ranging from 9.75% to 10.7%

{December 31, 2020: 6.00% 1o 7.02% per annum) and are due to mature in January 2022 (December 31, 2020: January
2021).

Particulars of lending 2021 2020

wm—m-——-= (Rupees in '000) —~-—-—--=

In local currency 44,289,040 187,430,652
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10.3.3

10.3.2

Securities held as colinieral against lendings
19 fuanciad inslicutions

2021 2020

! Further given us Further given .
Held by Bank collnteral Total Hald by Bank as collatsral Total
{Rupees In '000)
Market Treasury Bills 44,289 040 - 44,289,040 187,430,652 - 187,430,652
Tolal 441289 040 - 4422891040 187,430,652 - 187,430 652

The markat value of securilies held as collaleral against lenlings 1o financial institutions amounted 1o Rs.44,348 million,

ENVESTMENTS

2021 2020
Cost { Amortised  Frovision for Surplas / Costr Fravision for Surplus {
Lvestments by type cost diminution (Defieir) ~ COYIEVAlE L, ooised cost  diminulion (Defidy  Caming Value
{Rupees in "000}
Availuble for sale securilies
Feaeral Govemment Securiliss [ asgarzgos | -] (zswdesy [ aars7a231 || 228,453,992 || 4| [ {028,015 227 525177 |
444,412,696 - (2,540,465) 441,872,231 228,453,192 (928,015) 227,525,177
Hield to muturity securitics
Fadaral Governmanl Securilios [ asos281 |[ 3u0s2s1 | [ 26179,725 | [ 1] - [ 281798726
3,905,281 - 3,905,281 25179725 - - 25,178,725
Totul investinents 448,317,977 - {2,840,155) 445,777,512 263,632 917 - (928 015) 252 704,902
lvestments by sepments 2021 2020
Cost/ Provisien for Surplus / - Cost/ Proviston for Surplus /
Amorfised cast diminution (Deficiy  CWMEVERS o isedcost  diminution {Defici) Carrying Value
(Rupees i '000)—
Federal Government Securities
tarkel Traasury Bils r 378,353,683 ‘ l . (855,352) l 377,498,331 ’ ‘ 118,134 463 ’ | . ‘ | (177.508) [ 117,956,st
Pakislan Invastment Bonds 69,964,294 (1685113 £8,279,181 135,498,454 - {750.419)| 134,748,035
448,317 9717 (2,540,465) 445,777,512 252,632,917 - (928,015) 252,704,902
Total investmens 448317,977 !1!54054651 445,777,512 263,832 917 - (828015 2525’04.922_:
Quality of Availuble for sale secuvities
2021 2020
Oatails regarding quality of Available for sale (AFS) securilias ara as follows:

Cost
s ——-- (Rupees in '000)

Federal Government Securitles - Government guaranteed

Markel Treasury Bills 378,363,683 118,134,463

Pakistan Investmenl Bonds 66,059,013 110,318,729
444,312,696 _ 028453102

Particulars relatlng to Held to maturlty securlties are as follows
Federal Government Securitles - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 3,905,281 25 179,725

The market valug of securitles classified as held to maiurity as al December 31, 2021 amounied to Rs. 3,933 million (December 31, 2020 Rs. 26,076 mililon).

Invesiments include certain approved / Govemment securities which are held by the Branches to comply with the Stalutory Liquidity Requicement delarmined on the basis of the
Branches' demand and ima liabililes as sel oul under section 22 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962,

ADVANCES Performing MNon Performing Total

Nole 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupees la "000)

Leans, cash credils, running finances, elc,
Bills discounled and purchased
Advances - gross

45,410,138 32,543,937 - - 45,410,138 32,523,937
4,297,583 1,236775 . - 4,297,583 1,236,775

49,707,721 33,730,712 - - 49,707,T2L 33,760,712

Provision againsl advancas

P | P | I PN o
- General 0.3 (495,557 (337,607 - (495, 55‘7) (337 607)
{495,557 {337,607) - 495,557 (337,607}
Advances - nat of provision 49,212,164 33,423,105 - - 49.212,164 33,423,105
Particulars of advances (Gross) 2021 2020
—_ {Rupees in '000) -——-——
In local curisncy 49,707,72) 33,760,712
In foreign curcency - -
49,707,711 33,760,712
Mo advances have bean placed under non-pacforming status as at December 34, 2021 (Decembar 34, 2020: Mi).
Partiewlars of provision against advances 2021 2020
Sperific Genreral Total Specific General Totat
{Rupees in '000)
Opening balance - 337,607 337,607 - 294,566 294,566
Charge for lhe ysar s 157,950 157,950 - 430414 43,041
Closing balance . 495 557 495,557 - 337,607 337,607

intina with prudent policias, genaral provision against advances represents provision malniained al an amount up 1o 1% of the performing portfolio for which approval has beaen cbleined
from the SBP,

Particuliws of provisian against advances

2021 2020
Sperific General Toral Specific Gangral Total
{Rupees in ‘000)-
{0 local currency . 493 557 405,587 - 337,607 337,807
In foreign curancy

- 495,557 495,557 - 337,607 337 607
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FIXED ASSETS

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets

2021

{(Rupecs in *000)

2020

At January t, 2021
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended December 2021

Opening nel book value

Additions

Disposals - cost

Disposals - accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge

Other adjusiments / transfers

Closing net book value

At December 31, 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

At January 1, 2020
Cost
Accurmulated depreciation

Net bock value

Year ended December 2020

Ogpening nel book value

Addilicns

Dispesals - cost

Disposals -~ accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge

Other adjusiments / transfers

Clesing net book value

Al December 31, 2020
Cost

Accumnulated depreciation

Met book value

Rate of depreciation {(percentage)

The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated assets still in use are as follows:

Leasshold improvements

Electrical, office and computer equipments
Furniture and fixtures

490,439 531,517
111,657 173,244
602,096 704,761
2021
Electrical,
Buildings - Leasehold Furniture Vehicles office and Right-of-use Total
improvements | and fixtures computer nssets
equipinents
- (Rupees in '000)
443,100 280,932 111,867 64,101 127,947 216,930 1,244,884
(73,877 (204,997) (78,922) (33,789) (104,852) (43,686) (540,123)
369,223 75,942 32,945 30,312 23,095 173,244 704,761
369,213 75,942 32,945 30,312 23,005 173,244 704,761
- - 7,848 - 18,785 - 26,633
- - (1,366) - (7,588) - (8,954)
- - 1,366 - 7,588 - 8,954
(14,759) (14,898) {11,487) (8,801) (17,766) (61,587) (129,298)
354,464 61,044 29,306 21,511 24,114 111,657 602,096
443,100 280,939 118,349 64,101 139,144 216,930 1,262,563
(88,636) (219,895) (89,043) (42,590) (115,030) (105,273) (660,467)
354,464 61,044 29,306 21,511 24,114 111,687 602,006
3.33 10-33 20 16,70 33
2020
Electrical,
Buildings | . Leasahold Furniture Vehicles office and Right-of-use Total
improvements | and fixtures camputer assets
equipments J
(Rupees in '000)
443,100 280,938 96,133 64,101 119,544 60,007 1,064,314
(58.077) _ _ (190,058) {64,461} {23,698) (86,244} (11,800 (435,336}
384,023 S0,881 31,672 40,40% 33,700 48,297 628,978
384,023 90,881 31,672 40,405 33,700 48,297 628,978
- - 15,734 - 8,003 156,833 180,570
{14,800) {14,939) {14,461) {10,093} (18,808) (33,075 (105,978)
. . - - - 1,189 1,189
369,223 75,942 32,945 30,312 23,095 173,244 704,761
443,100 280,939 111,867 64,101 127,947 216,930 1,244,884
{73,877) (204,997) (78,922) {33,789) {104,852) (43,686) (540,123)
359,223 75,842 32,845 30,312 23,095 173,244 704,761
3.33 10-33 20 16.70 33
2021 2020

——-—-= (Rupees in '000)

131,926 131,928
771,632 77,427
60.772 59.728

270,330 269,081
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 1

Cost

Accurnulated amortisation
Net book value

Year ended December
Cpening net book value
Additions;

- direcily purchased
Amortisation charge
Closing net book value

At December 31

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Rate of amortisation {percentage)
Useful life

2021

2020

remmeenems (RUPEES I 'DOQ) mmmeme

9,996 7,037
(1,537} (3,174)

2,45% 3,863

2,459 3,863

8,933 2,959
{1,937 [4,363)

9,455 2,459

12.1 18929 9,996
(% 474) (7,537)
9,455 2459

20-33 20-33
3-5 years 3-5 vears

Included in cost of intangible assets are fully amortised items still in use having cost of Rs. 3.82 million as at December 31, 2021 {December 31,

2020: Rs. 3.82 million).

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

Deductiple Temporary Differences on
- Deficlt / (surplus) on revatuation of investments
- Post retirement employee benefits

Taxable Temporary Differences on
- Accelerated tax depreciation

Deductible Temporary Differences on
-(Surplus) / deficit on revaluation of investments
- Post retirement 2mployee benefits

Taxable Temporary Differences on
- Accelerated tax depreciation

OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency
income / mark-up accrued in foreign currency

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments

Acceptances

Mark to markel gain on forward foreign exchange contracts

Local clearing account
Receivable from defined benefit plan
Others

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan
Qutside Pakistan

BORROWINGS

Unsecured
Call borrowings

2021
Recognised .
At January 1, in profit and Recognised At December
2021 P oss in OCI 31,2021
(Rupees in "000)

314,808 - 564,358 889,163

775 - 247 1,022

325,580 - 564,605 890,185
{25,084) 2,200 - (22,794

300,496 2,290 564,605 867,391

2020
Al January 1, l;“ec:ff'.‘?':ig Recognised At December
2020 ploss in QCI 31, 2020
(Rupees in '000)

F (67,294) - 392,009 324,805

1,181 - {406) 775

{66,113) - 391,693 325,580
(27,795) 2,711 - (25,084)

{93,808) 2,711 391,883 300,496

Note 2021 2020

reemem—- (Rupees in ‘5)00) ——-

2,971,778 5,042,580

74,672 93,602

446,674 585,969

5,251,268 1,087,604

3d1 59

35.7 : 4,971 2,503

5,220 3,470

8,754,924 6,815,787

1,458,127 2,425,126

L.458.127 2.425.126

16.1 390,977.403 325902342

This represents borrowings from ICBC branches outside Pakistan and financial institutions at mark-up rates ranging from 0.257% to 0.7% per
annum {December 31, 2020: 0.68% to 0.95% per annum) maturing upto June 2022 (Dscember 31, 2020: upto September 2021},



17

17.1

17.2

18

Particulars of borrewings with respeet to currencies

in foreign currencies

2021

2020

-—-—-—u (Rupees in '000) -

390977403 325,902,342
DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
2021 2020
In local In foreign Total In local In foreign Total
currency currencies currency currencies
(Rupees in '000)
Customers
Current deposits 12,159,395 20,753,643 32,913,038 7,527,820 25,852,528 33,380,348
Savings deposits 82,331,536 1,035,215 83,366,751 50,680,333 4,332,027 55,012,360
Term deposits 36,056,208 - 36,056,208 29,685,683 - 29,685,683
130,547,139 21,788,858 152,335,997 87,893,836 30,184,555 118,078,391
Financial Institutions
Current deposits 20,745 2,942,322 2,963,067 34,046 1,185,535 1,219,581
Savings deposits 2,982 - 2,982 3,322 - 3,322
23,727 2,942,322 2,966,049 37,368 1,185,535 1,222,903
130,570,866 24,731,180 155,302,046 87,931,204 31,370,090 119,301,294
Composition of deposits Note 2021 2020
------ — (Rupees in '000) ———
- Individuals 963,860 1,084,075
- Public Sector Entities 544,297 661,824
- Banking Companies 2,951,484 1,208,538
- Private Sector 150,842,399 116,346,857
17.2 155,302,046 119,301,294

This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounting to Rs. 751 million (December 31,

2020: Rs. 690 million).

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / Return / Interest payable in local currency
Mark-up / Return / Interest payable in foreign currencies
Performance bonus payable

Commission received in advance against unfunded exposure
Current taxaticn (provisions less payments)

Acceptances

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts
Lease liability against right-of-use assets

Workers' Welfare Fund payable

Withholding tax payable

Clearing and settlement account

Others

2021 2020
asnmmemmmmn (Rupees in '000) ~-v-mm -

2,423,744 1,782,994
250,292 813,618
743,125 600,000
238,807 266,301
908,345 1,419,683
446,674 585,969
1,060,316 11,744,236
56,387 86,941
1,153,393 1,002,311
18,222 7.258
1,515,571 819,546
34,274 33,891
8,849,150 19,162,748




19 HEAD OFFICE CAPITAL ACCOUNT

Capital held as: 2021 2020

o= (Rupees in '000) ----—n=ue-v
Interest free deposit in approved foreign exchange )

iy Remitted from Head Office (USD 150 million) 23,975,160 23,227,140
iy  Revaluation surplus allowed by the State Bank of Pakistan _ 2,501,865 748,020
26,477,025 23,975,160
19.1 Interest free deposit in approved foreign exchange capital account amounts to USD 150 million as at December 31,
2021 (December 31, 2020; USD 150 million).
20 (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS Note 2021 2020
mmemmemmmm== (Rupees in '000) ~——wmo
Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale securities (2,540,465) {928,015)
Deferred tax on deficit on revaluation of available-far-sale securities 889,163 324,805
_(1,651,302) (603,210)
21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees
Commitments
Other contingent liabilities

21.1 360,092,095 300,843,002
21.2 1,003,342,210  1,001,196,413

1,363,434,305_ _1,302,039,415

21.1 Guarantees

Financial guarantees
Performance guarantees
Other guarantees

563,251 563,251
193,257,173 161,788,210
166,271,671 138,401,541
360,092,095 300,843,002

21.2 Commitments

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 21,776,130 19,389,007
Commitments in respect of:

- forward foreign exchange contracts 21.2.1 937,216,516 794,023,239
Commitments in respect of Government securities transactions - sale  27.2.2 44,349,564 187,784,167

1,003,342,210  1,001,196,413

21,2.1  Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase

466,244,897 387,483,841
Sale

470,971,619 406,539,398
937,216,516 794,023,239

The maturities of the above are spread over a perlod of one year.

21.2.2  Commitments in respect of Government securities transactions - sale 44,349,564 187,784,167

21.3 For contingencies relating to taxation, refer note 31.3.
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MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

on:
Loans and advances
investments
Lendings to financial institutions
Balances with banks

MARK-UP /RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposils
Borrowings

Costs of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency
deposits / borrowings

Finance cost against lease liability

FEL AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees
Card related fees (debit cards)
Investment banking fees
Commission on trade
Commission on guarantees

Commission on remittances including home remittances
Others

LOSS ON SECURITIES

Realised

L.oss on securities - realised

On:

Federal Government Securities
- Market Treasury Bills

OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Liabilities no lenger required writien back
Charges recovered
Refunds

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent & taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security (including guards)

Repair & maintenance {including janitarial charges)
Depreciation

Depreciation - Right-of-use assets

Property Management fee

Note 2021

rmmmmmemmeeee (Rupees in '000) —

2020

3,011,172 2,961,166
29,346,691 32,231,089
4,807,571 15,374,365
23371 34,445
37,188,805 50,601,065
6,536,072 6,189,766
1,716,386 5,656,600
22,622,754 23,145,880
6,927 7,205
30,882,139 34,999,460
8,793 7,200
57 328
343,891 216,514
204,424 127,417
739,907 614,978
113,308 84,887
4,199 10,283
1,414,576 1,061,607
25.1 (115) -
{115) -
237 209
10,259 2,070
1,169 1,355
2,091 -
13,756 3,634
27.1 1,764,760 1,049,219
2,091 27,612
7,469 7,257
23,015 21,709
20,771 19,959
6,988 1,805
29,658 29,739
56,081 27,622
18,074 18,074
164,147 153,777




27.2

27.3

27.3.1

Note 2021 2020

wmmmme-—— (Rupees in '000) --—----am
Information technology expenses

Software maintenance

2,418 2,445
Hardware mainienance 2,562 2122
Depreciation 17,766 18,608
Amortisation 1,937 4,363
Network charges 60,04':‘J 451472
84,730 72,711
Other operating expenses
Legal & professional charges 17,379 20,717
Qutsourced services costs 27.2 31,226 30,278
Travelling & conveyance 16,813 11,362
NIFT clearing charges 793 719
Entertainment expense 5418 5,224
Depreciation 20,288 24,554
Depreciation - Right-of-use assets 5,505 5,453
Training & development 1,886 1,634
Postage & courier charges 1,806 1,757
Communication 2,522 3,002
Stationery & printing 4,436 10,619
Marketing, advertisernent & publicity 6,399 18,924
Donations 27.3 300 500
Commission expense 4,288 4,131
Auditors Remuneration 27.4 2,604 2,588
Others 8,855 7.250
130,818 148,712
2,144,458 1,424,419
Total compensation expense
Managerial Remuneration
i} Fixed 967,449 886,381
it) Variable
of which:
a) Cash bonus / awards etc. 644,459 -
Charge for defined benefit plan 5,073 5,529
Contribution to defined contribution plan 3,940 3,652
Rent & house maintenance 58,323 64,121
Utilities 21,046 25,3086
Medical 6,137 4,250
Conveyance 12,027 5164
Others
a) Staff group benefits 33,29 23,479
b) Travelling - 15,463
¢) Education - 2,424
d) Covid-19 prevention 4,836 7,518
e) Health & Life Insurance 8,180 6,032
1,764,760 1,049,219

Total cost for the year relating to outsourcing activities included in other operating activities is Rs, 31.23 miltion {(2020: Rs.

30.28 millicn) heing paid to companies incorporated in Pakistan. The material outsourcing arrangements along with their
nature of service are as follows;

Name of Company Nature of Business 2021 2020
w=mmemee (Rupees in '000) ----eeuv—m

Phoenix Armour Cash transit service 1,988 2,784

Donations above Rs. 0.5 million

Pakistan - China Insiitute 300 -

Prime Minister's Pandemic Relief Fund 2020 - 500

300 500
Donations were not made to any donee in which key management persennel or their spouse had any interest.




274

28

29

30

31

31.1

31.3

Auditors' remuneration

2021 2020
—————— (Rupees in '000) -==——-- -
Audit fee 1,575 1,387
Fee for audit of employee funds 200 57
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 662 970
Out-of-pocket expenses 167 174
2,604 2,588

WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

Through Finance Act 2008, the Federal Government introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)
Ordinance, 1971 whereby the definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged and

conflicting judgments were rendered by various courts. Appeals against these orders were filed in the Supreme Court of
Pakistan,

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 has held that the amendments made in the law
introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of WWF were not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed review
petitions against the above judgment. These petitions are currently pending with the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

A legal advice has been obtained by the Pakistan Banks Association which highlights that consequent to filing of these review
petitions, a risk has arisen and the judgment is not conclusive until the review petition is decided. Accordingly, the amount
charged for WWF since 2013 has not been reversed. On prudent basis, the Branches have further charged WWHF provision
amounting to Rs. 151.08 million for the year 2021 (2020: Rs. 336.15 million).

Further, as a consequence of passage of 18th Amendment to the Constitution, levy for Workers' Welfare Fund was also
introduced by the Government of Sindh (Sindh WWF) which was effective from January 1, 2014, The definition of industrial
undertakings under the aforesaid Sindh WWF law includes banks and financial insfitions as well. The Bank along with the
other banks has challenged applicability of the said law on Banks before the Sindh High Court.

Note 2021 2020

OTHER CHARGES SRy - 17T Y S T 1111) P—

penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan

14,864 -
PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET
Provisions against loans & advances 10.3 157,950 43,041
157,950 43,041
TAXATION
Cursent 3,341,121 6,794,568
Deferred (2,290} (2,711)
3,338,831 6,791,857
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 7,532,944 16,799,762
Tax at the applicable rate of 35% (December 31, 2020: 35%) 2,636,530 5,879917
Effect of:
- Super tax 301,318 685,748
- Effect of WWF 58,922 117,652
- Additional tax on government securities 336,197 108,521
- Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 5,793 -
- Others 71 19
3,338,831 6,791,857

The returns of income tax have been filed up to and including tax year 2021. Except for tax years mentioned below, all other

assessment years are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of Income Tax Crdinance, 2001, The return for the year
2021 (tax year 2022) is due for filing by September 30, 2022,

The tax authorities have passed assessment orders for the tax year 2012 to 2014 and raised additional demand of Rs. 45
million on account of minimum tax under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Branches have filed appeal before
appeliate forum against these amendments and has paid full amouni under protest to obtain stay on recovery of the receiving
demand till the decision of Commissioner Inland Revenue {Appeals). The management is confident that the appeal will be
decided in favour of the Branches, therefors, no provision is recognised in these financial statements.
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CASLLAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2021 2020
(Rupees in "000)

Cash and balance wiih treasury banks

37,703 444 31,228,025
Balance wilh olher banks 23,331,975 2,487,170
51035419 33,723 198
Receacilintion of movement of liabilities to cash Rows arising from fnanciug activities
2021
Linbilities Eguity Total
Rills Berowings Depositsund  Delvrved tnx Qther Head office {Deficit) / Unremitted
payable othur accounts linbilities - net liabilities Capital Surplus on profit
Account reviluation
of assets
(Rupees in '000)
Balanct as a1 Janwwry 1, 2021 2,425,126 315,902,342 119,301,294 - 19,161,748 23,975,160 {603,210) 24,941,897 515,105,357
Changes lrom luancing cash lows
Ramiltances of unremiltod profit B - - - - . - N -
Linbility reluted chinges
Changes in bills payable r {966,999} - - - - R - R (966,999)
Changes in borowings . 65,075,061 - - - - - - 65,075,061
Changes in deposils and olhar accounts - - 36,000,752 - - - - - 36,000,752
Cnanges in other liabilties - - - - {9,813,224) - “ . (9,813,214)
Charge for defined bensfil plan - - - - - - - - -
Non-cash based - actuarial loss on
ra-measurements of defined banefil
plan - nel of lax . - - - - - - | (438) (458)
Effact of tax movement - . - - (500,374} - - - (500,374)
Transialion gain on revalualion of capial - - - - - 2,501,865 - - 2,501,865
Transfer of profit 1o reserve - - - - - - - 4,194,113 4,194,113
Changes in surplus an revaluation of assats - - - - - - {1,048,092) - (1,048,092
{966,999) 65,075,061 36,000,752 - (10,313,598) 2,501,865 (1,048,091) 4,193,655 95,442,644
Balance ng at December 3), 2021 L A8 127 390,877,403 !55.302!046 - 3,845,150 26477015 {I!ESI!JOI 191135 552 610&48&01
2020
_Liabijilies _Eauity Total
Bills Borrowings Deposits and Deferced fax  Olher liabilities  Head office {Deficlt) { Unremitted
payable olher liablilias - Capital Surpius on profit
accounts nst account revaluation
of assels
(Rupees in '000)
Balance as al January 1, 2020 4,125,334 351,242,068 94,465,934 93,908 17,185,484 23,227,140 124,978 14,833,238 505,398 071
Claunges from Snuacing cash Nows
Reminancas of unremitied profit - - - - - - - - -
Linbility reliuted changes
Cnanges in oilis payable (1,700,208} - - B - - - - {1,700,208)
Changes in borrowing - {25.339,718) - - - - - - {25,339,716)
Changes in depcsits and other accounts - - 24,835 360 - - - - 24 835,360
Changes In olher liabililes - - - . 2,019,268 - v - 2,019,268
Charge 1or defined benefit plan - - - - {1,069) - - - {1.069)
Non-cash based - acluarial loss on -
ra-measuremants of defined penailt -
plan - nel of tax - - - - - - - 764 754
Effect of tax movemant - - - {23,008) {40,835) - - - {134,843)
Translalion gain on revaluation of capilal - - - - - 748,020 - - 748.020
Transfer of prodit 1o reserve - J - - - - - 10,007, 605 10,007,905
Changes in surplus on revalualion of agsels - - - - - . (728,185) - 728,185
{1,700,208) (25,339,716) 24,835,360 (93,808} 1.977.264 748,020 (728,185) 10,008,659 9,707,286
Balance as at December 31, 2020 . 2425126 325902342 119,301,294 - 19,162,748 23975160 !603 210) 24,941,897 515,105,357

CREDIT RATING

Maody's Inveslor Services Inc. has assigned a long tarm cradit rating of A1 and a shord term credil raling of P-1 1o tha Head office of the Branches as at November 24, 2020 {Juns 28, 2018
: A2 for jong term and P-1 {or short term),

STAFFSTRENGTH

2021 2020
(Mumber}
Permanent 93 96
On Branches' conwracl 2 3
Branches' own slaff strength al the end of the year 97 89

In addilion Lo the above, 12 employees (Decambar 2020 11 employees) of outscurcing services companies were assligned 1o the Branches as at the end of the year lo perform services
other than guarding and janilorial services.

DEFINED BENEFLT PLAN

Grneral description

The Branches operata an approved graluily fund regislersd in October 2013 w.e.f July 2013 for ail its local parmanent amployses who have completed the qualifying pericd as defined in
tha scheme. In lhe currenl year. the branches have carried oul an acluarial valualion as at December 31, 2021 using Projected Unit Gredil Melhod and recorded the obligation accordingly.

Number of Employees undec (he scheme

The number of emplovaes covered under the defined benefit scheme are as follows:

2021 2020
(Numnber)
Gralily fung £5 54
]
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35.6

35.8
35.8.1

35.8.2

Principal actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuations were carried oul as at December 31, 2021 using the following significant assumptions:

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increasa
Mortality rates

Reconciliation of (receivable from) / payable to Note
defined benefit plans

Present value of defined benefit obligations 365

Fair value of plan assets 35.6

Receivable from defined benefit plan

Movement in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year

Current service costs

interest cost

Benefits paid

Re-measurement gain 35.82
Obligations at the end of the year

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair vaiue at the beginning of the year
Interest income on plan assets
Contribution by the Branches
Benefite paid
Re-measurements: Actuarial (foss)/ gain
on plan assets 35.8.2
Fair value at the end of the year 35.9

Movement in (receivable from) / payable to
under defined benefit plan

Cpening balance

Charge for the vear 35.8.1

Contribution by the Branches

Re-measurement loss / {gain) recognised in OCI
during the year 35.8.2

Closing balance

Charge for defined benefit plans
Cost recognised in profit and loss

Current service costs
Net interest expense on defined benefit asset/ liability

Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year

(Gain) / ioss on obligation

- Experience adjustment

Return on plan assets over interest income
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI

2021 2020
------- -— (Per annum) —----—
11.50% 9.25%
9.50% 8.75%
EFU (61-66) table
2021 2020
e (Rupees in '000) -———-r--—~
31,325 25,024
(36,296) _(27,627)
{4,971) {2,503y
25,024 22,261
5,686 5,885
2,248 2,446
(1,440) (4,591)
{193) {977)

31,325 25 024

27,527 21,192
2,861 2,801
8,246 7,942

(1,440) (4,591)

(898) 183

36,296 27,527

(2,503) 1,069
5,073 5,530

(8,246) (7.942)

705 {1,180

— @970 (2,503)

5,686 5,885
(613) (355)

5073 5 530
(193) ©77)
898 _(183)

705 (1,160)
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35.14
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Components of plan assets 2021 2020

---------- (Rupees in "000) --—————

Cash and cash equivalents 36,296 27,627

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption Keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the employee benefit scheme. The

increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption is
summarised below:

Gratuity fund
(Rupees in '000)

1% increase in discount rate

(1,043,715)
1% decrease in discount rate 1,138,711
1% increase in expected rate of salary increase 1,133,291
1 % decrease in expected rate of safary increase (1,057,621)

Expected contributions to be paid to the fund in the next financial year 6,129,050

Expected charge for the next financial year 5,588,962

Maturity profile

The weighted average duraticn of the obligation (in years) 4.7

Funding Policy

The Branches endeavour to ensure that liabilities under the employee benefit scheme are covered by the Fund on any
vajuation date having regards to the various actuarial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, expected

future contributions to the fund, projectad increase in liability associated with future service and the projected investment
income of the Fund.

The significant risks associated with the staff retirement benefit scheme include:

Asset Volatility
The fund is exposed to asset volatility risk to the extent of change in bond yields.

Changes in Bond Yields

The valuation of the defined benefit liability is discounted with reference to the Government bond yields. So, any increase
in bond yields will lower the defined benefit liability, but, it will also lower the plan asset values and vice versa.

Inflation Risk

The salary inflation (especially the final salary risk) is the major risk that the Gratuity liability carrles. In a general
economic sense and in a tonger view, there is a case that if bond yields increase, the ensuing change in salary inflation
generally offsets the gains from the decrease in discounted gratuity, But viewed with the fact that, for gratuity, asset
values will also decrease; the salary inflation does, as an overall effect, increase the net jiability of the Branches.

Life Expectancy / Withdrawal Rate

The Gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost minimal range and s quite predictable

in the ages when the employee is in the accredited employment of the Branches for the purpose of the Gratuity. Thus,
the risk of life expectancy is almost negligible.

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon the benefit structure, age and retention profile of the staff, the valuation
methodology, and long-term valuation assumptions. In this case, it is not a significant downside risk as higher withdraws,

although troubleseme for the Branches, will give rise to a release in the liability as retirement benefits for unvested due to
earlier withdrawals.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Branches operate an approved Provident Fund scheme for all of its local permanent empioyees to which both
Branches and employees contribute at the rate of 10% of basic salary in equal monthty contributions. During the year, the
Branches contributed an amount of Rs. 3.94 millien (2020: Rs. 3.55 million) to the recognized Provident Fund.
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COMPENSATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

Chlef Exacutlve Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020
emeesma-(RUPEES IN "000)-mr—eemmarmmen- --(Rupees In "000)—-----a-

Managerial remuneration & bonus 92,260 57,659 537,135 321,165
Charge for defined benefit plan - - 471 450
Contribution to gefined contribution plan - - 248 238
Rent and house mainienance 2,497 2,125 26,410 25,221
Utilities - - 248 238
Medical 145 u 371 279
Conveyance 612 - 2,262 6.118
QOthers 86 56 1118 3142

95,600 59,840 568,263 356,851
Number of persons 1 1 14 14

The chief execulive and certain executives are also provided with drivers, security arrangemenis, accommaodation and payment of travel bills in accordance
with their terms of employment.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value of financial assets

The Branches measure fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used In making the measurements:

Level 1. Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted grices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assets or liabilify, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indiracily (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3. Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

In the opinien of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from thelr carrying values since
these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer loans and deposits, are frequently repriced.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured 2t the end of the reporting period by the level in tha fair value blerarchy into which the fair value
measurament is categorised:
2021
Carrying / Falr value
Notlonal value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees in "000)

On balance sheet financial Instruments

Financial assets - measured at falr value
Investmenis

Federai Government Securities

441,872,231 . 441,872,231 - 441,872,231
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at falr value
Investments

Federal Government Securities 3,905,281 - 3,936,483 - 3,936,483
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at falr value
Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange contracts 937,216,516 - 4,190,952 - 4,190,952

2020
Carrying / Fair value

0On balance sheet financial instruments Notional value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in *000)
financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments
Federal Government Securilies

227 525177 - 227,525,177 - 227625177
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
investments
Federal Government Securities 25,179,725 - 26,075,782 - 26,075,782
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured af falr vaiue
Forward purchase and sale of forelgn exchange contracts 794,023,239 - (10,856,632} - {10,656,632)

38.2  Valuation techniques used in determination of fair valuation of financial instruments within level 2 and level 3:

{a) Financial instruments In level 2

Financial instruments included in levet 2 comprise of Market Treasury Bills, Pakistan Investment Bonds and forward foreign exchange coniracts.

Item Valuation approach and Input used

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Market Treasury Bllis Fair valuas of Pakistan Invesiment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using

PKRV rates.

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts The valualion has been determined by interpolating the FX revaluation rates

announced by State Bank of Pakistan.

(b) Financial Instruments in level 3

Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 3,
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment Details with respect to Business Activities

Profit and Laoss

Nei mark-up / retuen / prafit
Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up / return / inleres! income

Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Prefit before {axation

Bnlance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances
Investrments

Net inter segment lending
Lendings io financial instilutions
Advances - performing

Others

Tetal Assets

Borrowings

Deposits & other accounts
Nel inter segment borrowing
Others

Total Liabilities

Equity

Total Equity nnd Liabilities

Contingencies and Commitments

Profit and Loss

MNet mark-up / return f profit
Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up / refurn / interest income

Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit before taxalion

Balance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances
Investments

Net inter segment lending
Lendings 1o financial institutions
Advances - performing

Qthers

Total Assets

Borrowings

Deposits & other accounts
Net inter segment borrowing
Others

Total Liabilitics

Equity

Total Equity and Liabilities

Contingencies und Commitments

2021
Corporate Branch
finance Treasury Banking Others Total
(Rupees in '000)
3,011,172 9,815,122 (6,512,701) (6,927) 6,306,666
1,288,107 2,266,402 126,354 13,756 3,694,619
4,299,279 12,081,524 (6,386,347) 6,829 10,001,285
195,694 2,092,711 16,107 5,879 2,310,391
195,694 2,092,711 16,107 5,879 2,310,391
(157,950) - - - (157,950)
3,945,635 9,988,813 (6,402,454) 950 7,532,944
- 60,702,528 332,891 - 61,035,419
- 448,777,512 - . 445,777,512
. 44,289,040 . - 44,289,040
49,212,164 - - - 49,212,164
2,836,841 5,832,879 341 1,563,805 10,233,866
52,049,005 556,601,959 333232 1,563,805 610,548,001
- 390,977,403 - . 390,977,403
- - 155,302,046 - 155,302,046
685,482 3,721,348 2,986,701 2,913,746 10,307,277
685,482 394,598,751 158,288,747 2,913,746 556,586,726
51,363,523 161,903,208 (157,955,515) (1,349,941) 53,961,275
52,049,005 556,601,959 333,232 1,563,805 610,548,001
381,868,225 981,566,080 - - 1,363,434,305
2020
Corporate Branch
finance Treasusy Banking Others Total
{Rupees in '000)
2,961,166 18,802,965 (6,155,321) {7,205) 15,601,605
937 929 1,936,527 123,678 3,634 3,001,768
3,899,095 20,739,492 (6,031,643) (3,571) 18,603,373
117,853 1,637,954 978 3,785 1,760,570
117,853 1,637,954 978 3,785 1,760,570
(43,041 - - - (43,041)
3,738,201 19,101,538 (6,032,621) (7,356) 16,799,762
- 33,437,015 286,180 - 33,723,195
- 252,704,502 - - 252,704,902
- 187,430,652 - - 187,430,652
33,423,105 - - - 33,423,105
1,058,060 5,658,093 59 1,107,291 7,823,503
34,481,165 479,230,662 286,239 1,107,291 515,108,357
- 325,902,342 - - 325,602,342
- - 119,301,294 - 119,301,294
852,270 12,555,790 5,029,730 3,150,084 21,587,874
852,270 338,458,132 124,331,024 3,150,084 466,791,510
33,628,895 140,772,630 (124,044,785) (2,042 793) 48,313,847
34,481,165 479,230,662 286,239 1,107,291 515,105,357
320,232,009 981,807,406 - - 1,302,039,415




RELATED PARTY TRANSACTEIONS

The Branches have relzled party transactions with ils Head Cffice, othar ICBC Branches, employee benefil plans and Key management personnel.

The Branches enter into lransactions wilh related partias in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with
persons of simitar standing. Contributions 1¢ and accruals In respect of staff relirement benefds plans are made In accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the
contnbuiion plan. Remuneration to the axecutives / officers s determined In accordance with the terms of their appointment.

4l

Delails of the lransactions whth relatad pariies during the year and balances wilh ihem as at year end are as follows:

2021 2020
Key munpge- Key manage- Other
Ymenl ’ Head office Overseas Other related Y ment s Head office Overseas related
branches partles branches
personnel personnel parties
{Rupees in '000)
Balances with gther banks
In depasil accounts - 19,950,822 2,784,497 - - 1,024,326 100,820 -
In currenl accounts - - 596,653 - - - 472,024 -
- 19,950,822 3,381,150 - - 1,924,326 572,644 -
Lendings to financigl instifutiens
Opening balance - - - - - - N -
Addilion during the year - - - - - - - -
Repald during the year - - - - - - - -
Clasing balance - - - - - - - -
Advanees
Opening balance 768 - - - - - - -
Addilion during the year - - - - 835 - - -
Repaid during Lha year (287) - - - {117) - - .
Closing balance 481 - - ~ 768 - - -
Other Assels
Interesl f mark-up receivable 1 - - - - - - -
Defined benefil asset - - - 4,971 - - - 2,503
Forward exchange contract - - 573,251 - - - 1,037,547 -
Clesing balance 1 - 673,251 4,571 ~ - 1,037 547 2,503
Borrowings
Opening balance - - 325,902,341 - - 30,968,520 320,272,538 -
Borrowings duwing the year - 817,257,505 1,246,908,246 - - 71,825,480 1,626,699,135 -
Settlad during the year . (591,320,225)  {1,407,770,465) - - (102,895,000)  (1,621,089,332) -
Closing balance - 215,937,280 165,040,122 - - - 325,902,341 -
Depesits und vither accounts
Opening balance 4,737 - - - 3,044 - - -
Received during the year 457379 - - - 327,872 - - -
Withdrawn during the year (453,000) - - - {326,179) - - -
Closing balance 9,116 - - - 4,737 - - ~
Other Liabilities
Interest / mark-up payable 95 180,273 68,090 - 45 -
Payable 1o staff retirament fund - - - - - - - -
Forward exchange conlracls - - 25,723 - B - - -
Commission received in advance against
unfunded exposure - 31,962 3,354 - - 85,107 1,612 -
Closing balance 9% 263235 97,167 - 45 95 107 1,612 -
Ceontingencies nnd Commitnienis
Guaraniees - 177,099,897 - - - 175,872,291 73,775 -
Forward exchange conlraci sale - 34,687,323 - - - - 14,054,215 -
Forward exchange conlract purchase - 35,592,840 - - - - 15,271,637 -
2021 2020
Key wanage Key manrage- Other
went Headoffice | Oversens 0"'::; aated] | ment %% ead office Ovorseas related
personnel personael pariles
(Rupees in '000)
Incowe
Mark-up f return / interest eamsd - 14,023 9347 - 14 25952 7811 -
Foe and commission income - 387,374 43,988 - - 336,285 11,356 -
Expense
Mark-up / return / interest paid 125 414,588, 1,295,643 - 114 443,243 5,194,213 -
Comgpensation expense 663,863 - - - 416,691 - - -
Contribulion to Providenl Fund - . - 3,940 - - - 3,552
Contribution to Gratuity Fund - - - 8,246 - - - 8,151

TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Branches are not engaged in any significant trust activities.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)
Paid-up capital {net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs)
Credit Risk

Market Risk
Operational Risk
Total

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratlio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

2021

2020

-——--(Rupees in '000)——--—----

26,477,025 23,975,160
53,951,820 48,311,388
53,951,820 48,311,388

495,557 337,607
54,447,377 48,648,995

140,088,044 101,088,255
27,985,947 32,365,182
29,530,784 30,145,591

197,604,775 163,599,028

27.30% 29.53%
2730% 29.53%
27.55% 29.74%

The SBP, through BFRD circular 12, dated March 26, 2020 has provided the following relaxations to banks to enable

them to continue providing credit to the real economy:

decline in capital adequacy requirements for all tiers.

Minimum capital requirements prescribed by the SBP

CET1 minimum ratio (%)
Tier 1 minimum ratic (%)
Total capital minimum ratio (%)

2021

9.00%
10.50%
13.00%

The Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) has been reduced from 2.50% to 1.50%. This has resulted in a 1.00%

2020

9.00%
10.50%
13.00%

For capital adeguacy calculation, Branches have adopted Simple Approach for Credit & Market Risk related

exposures and Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk.

Leverage Ratio (LR)
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio

Minimmum Requirement (%)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow
Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Minimum Requirement (%)

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)
Total Available Stable Funding

Total Required Stable Funding
Net Stable Funding Ratio

Minimum Requirement (%)

53,951,820 48,311,388
985,405,095 909,524,168
5.48% 5.31%
3.00% 3.00%
450,477,354 454,298,448
193,332,867 180,436,844
233% 252%
100.00% 100.00%
181,613,851 185,376,723
74,898,370 86,485,584
242% 214%
100.00% 100.00%
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43.1

The full disclosures on the Capital adeguacy, leverage ratio & Liguidity ratio requirements as per SBP instructions
issued from time to time are placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is available at
http.//karachi.icbe.com.cn/ICBC/%ES%B5%B7 % ES%A4%96% ESY88% 86 % ES %A 1%BC/%ES%8D%A1%EBYBB %89
YSES%ASY87%ET%BD%91%E7%ABY%99/en/CustomerService 1/Downloads/.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Risk Management System is to safeguard the Branches' capital, their financial resources
and profitability from various risks. The Branches' risk managemeni policies are designed to identify and analyse all

risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, to measure and monitor the same through reliable Management
Information Systems.

This section presents information about the Branches' exposure to, and its management and control of risks, in

particular the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments. Most of the functions specified below are
performed at Head cffice level.

Credit risk

Credit Risk Management processes encompass identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring and control of
the credit exposures. In the Branches' experience, the key to effective credit risk management is a well thought out
business strategy. The Branches' focus over the coming years is to further enhance risk models, processes and
systems infrastructure, in line with its ambition to bring maximum sophistication to the risk management function.

The Head office has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the credit committee which is
responsible for the oversight of the Branches' credit risk in respect of;

- Formulating credit policies

- Establishing the authorization structure

- Reviewing and assessing credit risk

- Limiting concentration of exposure to counterparties

- Developing and maintaining the Branches' risk grading
- Reviewing comgpliance of business units

- Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to promote best practice in the management of credit risk.

The Branches have built up and maintained a sound loan portfolio in terms of well defined Credit Policy. lts credit
evaluation system comprises of well-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review procedures for the purpose of
emphasizing prudence in lending activities and ensuring the high quality of asset portfolio. As part of prudent
practices, the management conducts pre-fact validation of major cases from integrated risk point of view. The

Branches manage its porifolio of loan assets with a view tc limit concentrations in terms of risk quality, gecgraphy,
indusiry, maturity and large exposure,

Credit Risk - General Disclosures Basel Il Specific

The Branches are using 'The Standardized Approach' (TSA} of SBP Basel It accord for the purpose of estimating
Credit Risk Weighted Assets. Under TSA, Branches are allowed to take into consideration exiernal rating(s) of
counter-party(ies) for the purpose of calculaiing Risk Weighted Assets.

External

SBP Basel |l guidelines require banks to use ratings assigned by specified External Credit Assessment Institutions
(ECAIs) namely PACRA, JCR-VIS, Moody's, Fitch and Standard & Poors.



The Branches use external ratings for the purposes of computing the risk weights as per the Basel |l framework. For
exposures with a contractual maturity of less than or equal to one year, short-term rating given by approved ECAIs is
used, whereas for long-term exposure with maturity of greater than one year, long-term ratings are used.

Disclosures with respect to Credit Risk Mitigation for The Standardized Approach - Basel II specific

Credit risk mitigation policy

The Branches define collateral as the assets or rights provided to the Branches by the borrower or a third party in

order o secure a credit facility. The Branches would have the rights of secured creditor in respect of the assets or
rights offered as security for the obligations of the barrower / obligor.

Collatera! valuation and management

As stipulated in the SBP Basel || guidelines, the Branches have a policy to use the simplified approach for collateral
valuation. Under this approach, the Branches reduce its credit exposure to a counterparty when caiculating its capital
requirements to the extent of credit risk mitigation provided by the eligible financial collateral as specified in the Basel
Il guidelines. |n line with Basel Il guidelines, the Branches make adjustments in eligible collaterals received for
possible future fluctuations in the value of the collateral. These adjustments, also referred to as ‘haircuts’, are made to
produce volalility-adjusted amounts for collateral. These are reduced from the exposure to compute the capital charge
based on the applicable risk weights. At December 31, 2021, there are no non-performing advances.,

Types of collateral taken by the Branches

The Branches determine the appropriate collateral for each facility based on the type of product and counterparty. in
case of corporate and small and medium enterprises financing, fixed assets are generally taken as security for long
tenor loans and current assets for working capital finance usually backed by mortgage or hypothecation. For project
finance, security of the assets of the borrower and assignment of the underlying project contracts is generally
obtained. Additional security such as pledge of shares, cash collateral, TDRs, SSC/DSCs, charge on receivables may

also be taken. Moreover, in order to cover the entire exposure Personal Guarantees of directors of botrowers are also
obtained by the Branches,

The decision on the type and quantum of collateral for each transaction is taken by the credit approving authority as
per the approved credit approval authorization policy. Collaterals on facilities are in line with the policy.

Types of eligible financial collateral

Far credit risk mitigation purposes, the Branches consider all types of financial collaterals that are eligible under SBP
Basel Il instructions. These include cash / TDRs, gold, securities issued by Government of Pakistan such as T-Bills
and PIBs, National Savings Cedtificates, certain debt securities rated by a recognized credit rating agencies, mutual
fund units where daily Net Asset Value (NAV) is available in public domain and guarantees from certain specified

gntities. In general, for Capital calculation purposes, the Branches only recognise eligible collaterals as mentioned in
the SBP Basel Il instructions.

Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk arises mainly due t concentration of exposures under various categories viz. industry,
geography, and single / group borrower. Within credit portfolio, as a prudential measure aimed at better risk
management and avoidance of concentration of risks, the SBP has prescribed regulatory limits on banks' maximum
exposure to single borrower and group borrowers. The Branchaes are compliant with the aforementioned limits.
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43.1.2

43.1.3

43.1.4

43.1.5

Parliculars of Branches significant on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk In various sectors are analysed as follows:

Lendings to financlal institutions

Credil risk by public / private sector

Public / Government
Private

investment [n debt securities

Credil risk by industry sector

Financlal
Credit risk by public / private sector

Public f Government
Private

Advances

Credil risk by industry sector

Texiile

Chemical and Pharmaceuticais
Cement

Canstruction

Automobile and Iransportation equipment
Elecironics and electrical appliances
Power {(eleclsicity}, gas, water, sanitary
Wholesale ang Retail Trade

Services

Individualis

Others

Credit risl by public / privnte sector

Public / Government
Privaie

Contingencies and Commitments

Credit rigk by industry sector

Automobile and transportation equlpment
Eleclronics and eleclrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricily), gas, water, sanilary
Transpeor, slorage and communications
Financial

Others

Credit risk by public f private sector

Public { Governmeant
Private

Coueentraiion of Advances

Gross lendings MNon-performing lendings Provision held
021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
{Rupees in '000)

44,289,040 187,430,652 - =

44,289,040 187,430,652

* (Gross investments

Non-performlug Investments

Pravision held

2021 2020

2021 2020

445,777,512 282,704,802

{Rupees in '000)

2021

2020

445,717,512 232,704,902

445,777,512 _ 252,704,902

Gross advances

Non-performing advanges

Provision held

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupees in '000)

11,207,242 6,383,017 - - - -
5,440,183 900,Cc00 - - - -
900,000 3,079,200 - - - -
173,331 - - - - -
4,681,993 1,723,330 - - - -
14,671,835 0,896,375 - - - -
. 400,000 - - - u
2,199,400 2,383,279 - - - -
66,867 39,221 - - - -
10,366 868 8,955,380 - - - -
49,707,721 33,760,712 - - - .
49,707,721 33,760,712 - - - -
49,707,721 33,760,712 - - - -

2021 2020

(Rupees In '000)

463,218 -
1,463,121 71,352,544
2L,173,1i8 144,648,315
31,520,132 33,865,717

1,308,202 -
15,980,212 10,258,273
109,963,222 54,109,160

381,869,225 320,252,000

381868225 320,232,009
381,868,225 _ 320,232,008

et

The Branches' top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated 10 Rs. 36,899 million {2020: Rs. 24,336 million) are as follows:

Funded
Non Funded
Total Exposuse

The sanctioned limits againsl these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs. 40,67 2million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 30,725 millian).

2021

2020

(Rupees in '000)emmre—r

26,448,025 20,922,485
10,451,789 3,413,233
36,899,814 24335718




43,06 Advances - Province / Region-wise

d43.2

43.2.1

43.2.2

2021
Dizsbursement & Ulilization Disbur $ Utilization
AJK Including
ProvincelReglon Punjab Sindh KPK Balochlstan {slamabad Gliglt-
Baltistan
{Rupees I '000)
Punjab 45,958,037 45,958,037 - . - - -
Sindh 38,603,311 1,154,666 28,745,062 1,797,658 6,805,725 - -
Isiamabad 2,473,333 1,200,000 650,000 - - 623,333
Tatal 86,934,681 48,312 903 29,395,082 1,797 658 6,805,725 623,333 -
2020
Disbursementis WHilization
AJK including
Province/Reglen Punjab Sindh KPK Balochlsian Islamabad Gilgit-Baltistan
{Rupees In '000)
Punjab 20,013,432 20,013,432 - - - - -
Sindh 30,190,202 499,544 20,472,151 830,000 8,388,507 - -
islamabad 4,152,717 2,900,001 744,416 - - 508,300 -
Total 54,356,351 23412977 21,216,567 830,000 8,388 507 508,300 -

Market Risk

Market risk is ihe risk of loss arising from movement in market varlables including cbservable variabies such as interest rates, exchange rates and eguily indices, and
others which may be only indireclly observable sueh as volatililies and correlations. The 8ranches' policy is lhai all market risk taking aclivity is undertaken within
approved market risk limils, and that the Branches' standards / guiding principles are upheld at all {imes.

Market Risk Management is an indepandent conirol function with clear segregation of duties and reporting lines. Its maln respensibllily is to ensure that the risk-taking
units manage the Branches’ market risk exposure within a robust market risk framework and within the Branches' risk appetite. The Branches' standard systems are
used to fumnish senior irading and market risk staff with risk exposures. All trading activities and any business proposal that commit or may commit the Branch (legally
or marally) 1o deliver risk sensilive producis require approval by independent authorized risk professicnats or committees, prior to commitment.

Balance sheel split by trading and banking books

2021 2020
Banking book  Trading book Total Banking book  Trading book Total
{(Rupees in '000)
Cash and baiances with treasury banks 37,703,444 - 37,703,444 31,228,025 - 31,226,025
Balances wilh other banks 13,331,973 - 23,331,978 2,497 170 - 2487170
Lendings to financial institutions 44,289,040 - 44,289,040 187,430,652 - 187,430,652
Investmanls 443,777,512 - 445,777,512 252,704,902 - 252,704,902
Advances 49,212,164 - 49,212,164 33,423,105 - 33,423,105
Fixed assels 602,096 - 602,096 704,761 - 704,761
Intangible assets 9,455 - 9,455 2,459 - 2,459
Deferred tax assets 867,391 - 867,391 300,496 - 300,496
Other assets 3,303,656 5,231,268 8,754,924 5,728,183 1,087,604 6,815,787
605,296,733 5,251,268 610,548,001 514,017,753 1,087,604 515,105,357

Forelgn Exchange Risk

Forsign exchange risk (FX risk) arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to the changes in foreign exchange rates, The Branches

manage this risk by salting and monitoring dealer, currency and counterparly limits for on and off-batance sheet flnancial Instruments.

FX risk 15 mainly managed through malched posilicns. Unmatched gositions ase covered substantially through derivative instruments such as forwards and swaps.

The currency risk is reguiated and monitored agalnst the regulatory/statutory limits enforced by the SBP. The foreign exchange exposure limits in respective currencies

are managed against the prescribed limits.

The analysis below rapresents the concentration of the Branches' foreign currency risk for on and off balance sheel financial instruments;

2021 2020
Fureign Foreign Net foreign Foreign Foreign Net foreign
Currency Currency OI:T btn.lnme CUFTENCY Currency Currency 31213:”;2 currency
Asseis Liabilicies sheet fiems exposure Assets Llabllities i expasure
B {Rupces in '000) {Rupees in '000) --—————
United States Dollar 45,810,418 440,420,151 393,534,055 (1,075,678) 26,387,200 383,701,756 367,594,805 280,339
Greal Britain Pound Sietling 3,702 - - 3,702 5,639 - - 6,639
Euro 43,940 - - 43,940 186,529 - - 186,620
Japanese Yen 185 - - 785 795 - - 795
Chinese Yuan 4,719,957 2,942,322 (1,461,606) 315,969 766,100 1,187,747 440,189 18,552
Hong Kong Dollar 1,858 - - 1,858 1,692 - - 1,602
50,580,660 443,362,473 392,072,389 (709,424} 27,349,145 384,885,503 358,035,004 494 B46
2021 2020
Banking book Trading book  Banking hook  Trading book
e emeammae (Rupees in 2000) ~——— ————~
Impaci of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and loss account 10,757 - 4,846 -




des) AAmISUSS NeNd 1Sa5RI|  PIBLA SAREINWND

Iy S0vT NI “OBLSeDE 0l sZ0t  OBLSIOE 09L520¢ GRLSL0¢ TLTToz0 1 B0 Z0P 3L GWO 2LV OPF
RI4TH . - - . ~ LS8SPOPL  [SZCTIPOvH) To¥g's b vel BPO'ZTL OP) deg Ayapsues 1Sy 150201 PIaL, iRjo )
- - - - - - [GETAL l9gt'650' ¥} £r9'tte {0paa¥epy) {98Z'9.0°6%} deB 1eays 0ureg-10
E - - - - - - - - (rosert’v]  (pasero vl 3|BS - SUORITSLIES SBILNDSS WURUBAGL) -
- - - - - - {99./099'69) {¢6L'296'5TT) lozpser'sal) {995°T68'LL) (s19'3L6'0L1) 212§ plemIo) SPELUED S6UeLDXT LBiaUo) pIEMIOL -
- - - - - SEE'95Y'BY LDSETEBIT EHL'BIE 6O IFS9ERLL 268 ¥HT 908 aseynd piemo) S1Reuea sBueyoxy ulielo) pieso) -
30 13dsad U SJUSWIWWAT)
SIUSWINSLY [e[DUBUY J2aYs aoURIeq-4O
£92°08¢ - - - - - 0EL'B¥T'SL leca'zacTytl Tegr'esz5a) 859'89y'r8Y ELCZAPLS deb jaays soue(eq-ud
H - - - - - ERELIL ZLE6YBYS) IREIITLIPT 13Z'g90°E}} 97.'999'959
0956¥8 4 - E - _\ - - B - - - 09688 - sangey JauiD
$0L°9.858 - - . - - £88'411 000‘00t D00'28F'S g95°0Tv'oLL 9r0°T0L'SSE VoS8P - %00 FUN0CIDE Jaylo PuB spsodeq
- - - - . - - ILEGPP TS 29£°088"$ET £0L° 2492 EDP'LIEDEE %L 0~ %520 sbumoucyg
LTL8SY'L - - - - - - - - - 2zesry - ageled sig
Soipqer
6¥3°C95 sy - - - - - LI I9E's . ELF'99P'TL SOG'PELILLY §L6°905'L6T 650'690'609
¥I5 PS8 . - - - - - - - - VEEPILE - $)asSE 190
002°39 . - - - - £E6°L20'2 £LY°90P'ZL 3234 290 669°6Z1'9% yoLTLIBY %ILTL - %l SBAUEADY
- - - - - - 18L'6.27'89 - 9¥0'cL3° L) 987'SZ8'CL2 zIs'LLL 'SPy %EO'DL - %YL SIHUNSIAL|
- - - - - - - - - or0'seZ Yy [N e %L'DE - %546 suonnsul jersueuy o) bupua
999965 - - - - - - - - slL'seL'zz L6 LET'ET %0°L ~ %0'0 SHURQ JBLIO i SROURES
698°S¥ L i - *[. - - - - - - 95255 prpicoLiis L %070 - %070 syueq Lnsead YIm Se0UBieq pue ysen
FFEE
{000, uf sasdny) SUBLINDSU| (BPURLY 128YS SAUEIEG-UQ
SIBIL O) SJedk SIER, SUBBA SERIA Iea) syuow syjuon Yuow a
SpUNSL an0qy ok o3 501 col zo1 L 01 SUIIOW 3o ca L odn s
iepouBLYy buneag § 1200 [FELYsY Z ABA0 1 J3ag 9 tang [ 1] L 13AGD I PloLL
1SAUFUON
ASU 152430 [ PI3LA O) pasodx] 1801 sApoaLg
1202
SSUIGEIT PUE SIOSSY dARISUDS S1EY ISIIORUL JO HIBLUSIN
. vog'LL - 599’7 sajes jsasaiut Ut abueys umoq ¢ | -
- {zg5° 21} - (pz'2) sajes jsaseUl Ul ABURYD piemdn) o & -
AWasu aalsuayaIdwes YO -
Ly 800" - A d SIS 1SBIDIU u mm:w_._u PIBMUMO] % [ -
- (817'200°L} - (9z¥'c2) s} J53u23U1 Uk abuByo premdn ¥, | -
JUROIJE S50| pue Jold -
uo 3181 ISaJsp Ul qum..._u %L j0 #quc.:
[600, Uy s9adry)
$ooq Buipes | %009 Bunueg Hooq Supriy  qooq Bujueg
T4 170Z

[{i4

puE J2ssy S2UoURIg 3yl sywy digeidacoe uyum pabeursw SI¥SL SIGL JeY) 2Insus 0) 18puo u) "pouad uaalb B Ul peoud-a 3g JC 3Bl JeY) SJUALNISY! 199YS 0UBEq-N0 pUE 58

-siseq Jenbas e uo sanige) pue s1esse ayl jo buisud-al pues spwil ded snouea s:oluow (ODTy) sauwueD wawabevew Ajpgen

qel pUB $19SSE JO SjUNoWe ay)

u sdeb 10 souslBWSIL JO INSA] B SB YSU BRI 1$913)U) 0} pasodxa aue saysuelg ay] selel 1SaseiIUl jaiew ul safueyd 0] Juanbasues SJUBWINNISUI |BIBURUY JO SN[BA 34} Ul UOIENDAY 3] WOl SISUE Y51 3|81 1SaUllul 8y L

ey

sHjlaeds i jaseqd - (Fg4Y]) yoog Buiyueg oyl Ul Y51y 218y 3SaIa)Uf / PBIA  €TCh



-ajyo:d AJiqel| s o) UokE[aI Ul $195SY AJpmnbi Aujeny ybiH Jo Y0CIS JUSNNS 2INSUS Yaiym Y SN puUB Yo7 (1) [@sed yllm Jueldwoa Ky a1e sayouelg syl ISA0I0N

‘pojias / pazieal aq M SARIGE]] / SI3SSE ayY YoIuMm UO Slep pjoadxa syl Uo ainjell o) paWNSSe AUB Ajunjew [enioeljuod e Bumey

Jou saugey pue sssy ‘spuny pinbyl jo AJngeieae syl pue Alojsiy uonusial Isodap SayoURig Sy} AG PalEdIpul SB SANUNIEL SAIDAYS AUl JO JUNOIDER ayR) JOU Op PUE 3}ep AJLNIELU JENIDEUOD aUl 0} SIED |33Us a0urjeq
ay} Je pouad Buluiewal ayy jo siSEg 8Y) U0 PAUILIS)AP USB] SABY PUS JeaA By} e SIPGe)] PUB S]SSE JO SIUNEW [BMIIEAU0D By "SGR PUB S]aSSe sayduelq ay) Jo ajyosd Aunjew oy} $3ZUBWILINS M0}aq SiGe] al ]
‘pawelunew st Aupinbi jenbape ainsus of paioyuow

51 @|goid Auniew auy| "SINUNDSS S[qelENIEW AlipRal pue syuajeanba ysea ‘yseo jo aoue(eq Ayjeay e Sulweuiew 'puiw ul Aupinbir yim palbeuew aie 5)9sse SayDuEIg au) ¥sU sIy JsujeBe psenb o] ‘ajgejesBun swWo53g
0] Bulpury J0 $80iN0$ UIENSS 8sned ABW U2IyM 'SapelBumop JIpasd 30 UoRDNISeR 1e)BW AQ pasned 3q Ued Ysi AypinblT “sjuawasinbas Sulpun) 13y n1ay] j9suw 0) a(deun agq [Im saysuelg syl Jeyl ¥su auy) St ysu Aypinbry
ysi Aupinbr

"SaUDURIE BU} JO [IPOW SSAUISNG 3Y} JO MBIA LI S|EYNS JSOW aq O} paiapisuod 31 yoeosdde sy

“yomawey Aoljenbal || jaseg Jad se ysu jruonesado Jo) ebieys epdes aienoea 0} yoroiddy Jojeoipul 21seg 25N sayouelg ay |
109dg 1 [3SEQ SIINSOPISI(-HSTY |suonelad

‘sasuodsal ysu 13Y)0 10 ‘sjoju0D a) Sjuslshipe 'Sjo4U0d [BUOI)PPE INOGE SUDISIDAP PaLLIoUl SXELL O} UCREWIOUE
JUBIDIYNS PRSN SABY SBLUOURIG BU} 1BY) 9INSus 0] pur ‘Juswabeuell J01Uss AQ pauSIap SE *SjaAad) a|qedaddse syl ulylm I UteluoD OF ‘Jaiel “ysil ajeununa o} paubisap Jou si ysu jeuonessdo 0 yoseoidde sayouesg
Wsu jo uonezucbaled vowwod e Bursn ysu [euonesado asbeuesw

0] DASN BB $|00) YSU JO SIYNS SNCUEA 'JBA3] WNWIUJW & 0} 3su [euolelado sayouelg ay) desy 0} JApIO U] "S30L19 UBWNY 10 SIS [BUOISSaoid 0 si9Aa) Juaoinsur BUisq SI0IIB) [BUOIPPY "SwIB|SAS U180 1o SauinoL
‘LUONEIUNWWOYA[S) PUB DIU0AD8[8 Ul UMODNESRIq SE Lons ‘suchelado Aep o} Aep ssysuelg oy} ut Buwunddo saimyie) Jo §nsal & sg paunsul ag Aew yadiym Sassop 9iqissod 0] pate|al s1 ysu [euonessdo sayouslg sy

Asiy jeuonesado
TCBGEEG BGL  (FFGBBE PV NG GBL W) (F1G06e tPF (LIGGBZ LRL) TIIGEBZ FPE) (959 ZEL 202) WLOPBLPIZ)  (CLLGPBZGH  (LFVELB 55) deg AYARISUIS ASIY ISHIBIUE) PIAA IsREINWIND
I B - - - SrLgEg0s G (@Ezwra’oll) — [G5C9L0°Z0L)  {ZLF'E€6°GS) deqy AyaIsuag 1M 152431 £ PIALA 1E10 L
- - - - - E {rZa'0LZ'P) (£6€£7£09°€) (9¢5Z8p™9) (281686 261L) T¥Z¢'6€8 502} des 12ays asureq-uo
- - - - - - - . - - [V TN [FETN TS SES - SUCHIBSURY] SIRUNDTS JUILLUBACD -
- - - - - - (zre'esspil)  (9E9'LL0LEY) (¥92'912°96) (150°Z69'7L) {85¢'6€5"90) S8IeS PIRMi0) sPEUED SBueyg ubiaio) preso) -
- - - - - - £ZE'SrE0LL BLT'POF LLL §81'ves'68 150 LE6'6S irR'ser'ist SOFELUNG pIBAIG) $1020uos aBueyox ] ubiauo) piemso) -
0 122d88) L SIUAWHLIWLOD
SIUBUILESLY [BIOURUL J2aYys SIURIeq-110)
TZEOFEC B8F) = B B B B TSR ED] TIgB 9EC oIt BLIees BT 051 500 1 121800 27 deéd jaays souelEq-UQ
£087/81 9% - - - - - E¥P S0 P8 T69'99T'BZL 06E'LF0 {ZE HPEEATA 015162900
grL'Zo1'61 - - - B - E - - - NN - samugey ;SO
ﬁ&_mmm.s - - - - - 8L L4 000'003 DOE'PZLEL 29165204 y8Z 0TS %SL'8 - %0 $IUN0I9E JB\IO puE SPSodoQ
- - - - - - 090'€L6'¢a 269'999°821 064 ZZTL'ELL . THETO6'STE %560 - %890 sEumonog
9zi'SEr'T - - - - - - - - - 9zL'sZH'E siqefed siig
Somger]
LZL'ESE'LE - - - - SHL9ES0L LTV 262°06E [RE-3:r43-18 VLG'ELS'LE ZEB'P98'907 LPQ 160 LS
186189 - : - - E - - - [ LBL'S189 $198S8 IO
828'3¢ - . - - . TLE'EED'L Z86'210°6 182'5156'8 195'619'SL SOL'ETYEE W%SLOL - Wy SFOUBADY
- - . - - Gv1'gERDL Yy E9ErL 579010, 048165 ¥T GEY'¥EE Z05'POL'TST %OATL - %ST L SIBUNSOAL|
- - - - - - - - - ZSYOEY L3L ZSY0Er L8L BZO'L - %09 sunninsul [eouey of Guipus?
STO'TLY - . - - - - - - $pL'SZ0'Z 0LLLGYT %580 %0 $AUBQ JBLI0 Yim SEDURIEY
180' L2908 - - - - - - - - ¥irs'esg S0’ IE %940 - %0 syueq AUNseal) ynm $a0uees pue USED)
s)assy
-= {000, u! saadny) FIUAWNASUS [RIDUBUY) 193YS 20UR[BG-UD
SUBWMSU SIE3L 0L SIEBA sJ23) SJE N Siga) Jea) SUpUc SHIUOW yiuow ajad
|enueuy fuueaq IAOUT gL oy sa €0 zo 1 O} sypuowy g0 gor 1o JEEY N
1S3 2-UON G A0 £ 1RAD & 43A0 L J12AD g laad) £ IND 1 faaD) 1 plas
WSU 158191/ p(a1s, 01 pasodxy 1201 3AR3Y3

0z0z

VEY

eer

{234



APR'ELE B

[T
L68'LPE'YT
D9L'SLBET
ELTZZEBE SS¥ BRE | 1991LVE 6¥0'S5P°0L 596515 T 618 LE0TL “(zereeg vl (JOS0ZY L) {10€°110'08) [ETAC ) £Z1'G8¥ 6E 961 ¥O0F LS (5z1 624 2) LYBELE'SF
96.'8¥1 JE6 62 oz1'oLe €51 LIy ZL0'5er FEQPOFSE £12'802'0E8 94601948 Z08'85€'56 R T 050'039'¢62 £56'¥2y 07 668'690'¢ 015'164'99r
o6L'sv} LEE'¥6Z sZL'oLe S ery 629'45¢ £L5°135°) 120°Zyr'y 1Z9'8rE'L S9L'E9Y Y TLO'LSS'S BLN'TOL'T 90¢°126 ri87} BrL'ZIL 6L
- - - - £98°L2 ooo'o 000'009 008'046'Z 000'805'01 £66'200'Z9 60%'0)6'02 728'958'9L 1812867 ¥BZ LOE'6LL
- - - - - LO0'ELE'E8 769'999'821 G55'SFLEE €0’ 22008 - - - - THEUE'EZE
- - - - - - - - - 00¥'E62 "L £99'5%5 S20'58Y §£8'08 9ZL'GIFT
600" LLY'9T 58€'re9'! LeLIIY'T 20Z'Z06°0L LI6'G10'S £6P'95F 151 125'528'5L 699'061' L2 105 LEE'S P LE £L1'591'E9 61628 1OL vLL'OVE 1GE'50L'835
- - - - SHELP DOZ'E98 Lee'zLe SOL'LPT'L 15¥'99L £LT 192} SE90L0°T arz'I5% - 182'838'9
- - - - - - - - - ¥9T 09k IR 66009 L1001 96¥00E
- - 0z £05 zel 151 89 - [1F4:] - - - 80E 58T
PaL'SHE 11408 6I5)y 16429 895G L4 [ia1 iz 57’0k s - - £15's 194'F0L
239°050'F 9/9'e65'1 ¥RELE'T °50't TELES6T £00°2GE'L ECT'HEC'R £69'L 58" 2gl'esL's 505°86 - 205°L¥Z - SOL'ETFEE
- - - Sri'8e8'0L - BFFEOT BrL 6Z8'0L0'L 058° 265 ¥ - 0£5'766 - - - 206'70L'252
- - - - - - - - - 0£0'099'62 819'65L°85 £0L'020'66 - 159'0sr' L8
- - - - - - - - - PZELEL) £29'785 PEP'EEY araa ] 011'L6P'T
BS1'6L6'ST - - - - - - - - gZ11em'e 660'169'L ELLOSY' L 96912 §EQ'9ZTLE
{000, wr saadny)
SIEdp sk Jeak y syuow sucH SOl puow
SIED) § JBAD PSPN £ 218D sieak 7 0} { 4340 0 SHOW §IBAG 50194340 291§ 1940 £ 0171980 SYUOW Z O | 12D 4 0 SAZR p| JOAD SABP b1 O] £ JAAQ  SABD £ O} L JBAD feq Lodn oL
0202
SLTLIG'ES
[20€"L59°L)
285'SEL'ST
STO'LLV'AZ
E29'D66'0C 281°2LL°} L0L'S20°Z 008°22§°1 1860609 VITTE0 LL {ozazes vl [r2a'zis'7oL) £06'607'EE (eeL'62T'4Z] SEEOEYSSE 616°966 FL [P ERE S48 196'ES
SSE'RIL +0Z'79F LIS riy'egs ELE'LLE LY S58'569°551 015 0T eeL ESP0LSEE L0¥'L90'EL ST¥'9LE0r 290'461°28 €LE'¥Z0'Y 922'98§'95%
[ese'ant £0Z'ZIr [¥ag- T [2Y g1 0£5'667 129'196 e¥s'ore LS'PT 866'£7E STO'548'T 82L'vP6'L £29°TS 806 051'8v8'8
- - - - £RLLL 000'07 000'00r 000'525'4 a00'c 16 $00'268°99 6Z0'TEY'RE 394'758'9E LOg'p28'E WOToLS5E
- - - - - - ZIE'ERYISE CL6'0E9'5LE SSP'ErE'ES £0L'2¥3°T - - - £0¥" 1267068
- - - - - - - - - #99'tit OEZ'OpE 529167 $09'90 LTRSS
BZO'GELLE 18E'0¥Z°2 z.8'509'7 FIZGLL'T PEZLEV'R L83'00L" L SLZT'E00'¢ 489" 2%3'08 95E°ILE LR 899'L08'LS 123'9vE'962 S86'EEL'TS 099'59L'L 100'5¥5'019
- - - 9r8'5t T0%'L6E ZFELIL'T 29LLoe’e SSO'L¥E $68'3v2'L 166'9% SLELPY - YIEPELE
- - - - - - - - - 60979y LEETOT 2LPELL £16'3T 16g°198
LE6'8 - - 0z [+ 9zl 7L - v - - - z¥ 5578
si8'Lse THH'E0L 108°p5 6258 BEE'R TEE'YL FFLEL £ s3L'8 £9g - - 174 960709
LBL'SIE'Y gTLILLT §9¢°055'T zop030°'z caeor's 00L'SL0'G sla'zLa'e [T 44 280'8Z¥'L 0Z1'996°E 250'188'L azp'ge - PILILZ'EY
- - - - - 08L'647'89 - 325°0P0'S2 098’90 IGTEY LT OFL2EL'98L - - FAR- T T ]
- - - - - N - - - - - 0v0'58T'PY - Or0'seZ Y
- - - - - - - - - ZZLerr'T) LZV'er's FEE'993'Y oL S1§'LEE'ET
$20°LI¥°9L - - - - - - - - EI7'L86'S 65T LA rH'VLE wrYE0L LE
(g00. uf semdny)
SIRD A FYLEYS Jead | oy ESTHITET SYUOW SUIUOW SYIUOW yow shep
SIEIL G SI4O § 0L £ 43R0 £ o) A0 sseak Z ol R0 SUUOW § ARAD 5019130 30} £ 190D £ 912 A0 ol Li1anAg Lol m..nwu AR ELY s b4 R WL mhnt LoV} ar0 >WD k O—n:.u 1ne]
1207

§1955E JO UCTENRAS UQ IDIag
wieud pspwasun ¢ pajeudosddeur
Wnoowe [eudeD S0 prap

sFsse jaN

FUNGEY SISO

1au - saniqey XB) pINRlag
SUNEa2E J1PYe Pue sysoda]
sBumorog

siqeded sig

saqEr]

LESSE JAKD

184l - 519558 XE) pAa)R]

sjesse aqbuay]

519958 paxiy

$9oLBADY

SIUBWIESAY]

suchIMSYI [EIoueLy o} Bupuat

SHUEQ IO YUm SIOUETRT

SAUEq AInseas) (uam $SOUBIE] pUE Y5BD
955y

$1955E JO UONBNEAZ UC 11337
weoud pamwaiun ; paryeudoiddevn
uncoe |2Rde 330 pesy

S1a85¢ JaN

SIANHGEY KD
€1l XE} paLIs)3q
SIUNDISE J9yic pue spsodag
supanog

aiqeded sjig

518552 J3IN0

13U - 513558 XV pALIBIAC

siasse apqbuey|

$195SE paxIy

SBOURADY

SIUALISIAY]

suornmnsul jedteuy o Buipusy

$YuRq IO Uik SaoLB|eg

Syueq AUNSEaA UM SIAUREY PUR YSET)
slassy

SaYDUBLT Y] JO SOIUNQEI] PUE SI9SSE BYE 10 ANINIEW [BNIIRIUOST U0 PISEQ - SBIUIGEI PUE SIBSSE JO SINLINTEW



melesy

[(TRA)]
268'1¥6'pT
091'546'€Z
TWEF8LL0L el o) Ger BEL L1 86Lt0T £V BLIC00ES GOLva86% (a0 Gcc 8LL (320867 20L) ©15 (9L 99F ZbAcls ar
PEFOLL'E S90LLY LZ5'159'02 DBY'PTF AL £9£'868£°61 PEE LEQE0L LLO'BLE FEL ¥8Y'6L8'GE L TIB'SIE'LZ 015'162'99+
16E'¥L 1BE'PL LE6'F6T 9Z3°01E vSLLpY 202698} 1Z0TrY L (BEZLB'S 0EL'8E2'8 B¥L'TIVBL
LET'OR0Y 997980’y 985°955°0Z POTFLL AL 60Z°L¥6'8L ZTL'EPT'LL g6T'0LLY ISPl 9LY'ZGL'9L PEZLOE'ELL
- - - - - peoELe'eR 269'999'8Z1 06S'ZTEELL - Z¥E'Z06'GZE
- - - - - - - - 9TLGZr'T AN T4 R
gLL'688'ye ZBEZ0L'Y oL'ele'z Z69'09Z'F BEL'7S5'ZL 6iL'988'Z9L ¥ZB'Zra'a ) 9G¥ LELEE SHE LLPEGL 2SE'S0LSLE
- - B - - SEL'F0B (o) Z85°60F' 1 6v1'688'C JEITEE)
- - - - - - - - 96+ 00E 08F'00€
- - - 0z £0% £ZE 788 079 60¢ 85F'Z
£2T68¢ O¥6'SL 11206 6L6'LY 16¥'29 08L'SE 5P GL L0l 995's L9L'F0L
vET YT ZGH'9Z0'Y 8L9'¢65 L pS8'6.E'T £90'1 S£4'S0E01 £TT'HET'? 199'606'9 G00'9bE SOL'EEY EE
- - - - S¥1L'8E8'GL arr'eez'art 828'0L0°L 0SB'266'¥Z 0£9'P86 206'P04'2SE
- - - - - - - - Z55'0Er 8L Z59°05Y' L8}
- - . - - £55'B¥0'L 0LLB5F 915509 LEE'ZEE 0LL'L8YT
L99'GEF'FE - ELLBET'L 668'8£8' L LE6'6FY'L S9L'BZE L ££9'20¢ QLE LT LPERZL SZO'TT LE
(000, ur saeday)
Jea)
SIB3L 0} SADQY  SUEBA DL OIGJAAD SIEBA GOV EIVAD SIBSAEOIZIIO SEIATALBAD | oo g A0 SUIUOW 9 01 € J2A0 SLIUOW £ 0 | 10 Loy [ o)dn -
0202
TSITT96 LS
(ZoT 1594
I85'SEL'6Z
SZO'LLY' 9T
TBEZLLEL 1280 203l 1651 2L [2] [0 F0930L 1v0 27 & 1555990 P 1) 1562 703 59) 0Lt PL 5 T4
089°788'y SL9°'vag'y sLz'szL Lt 168'90Z'62 968°yE5'97 825°980'0Z £25'rZZ 091 Lp2'001'9%2 12555658 9Z2'985'955
[FANZ] 9.1'¥8 £0Z'Z9% Liy'9Ls ¥LF 885 JOEPEA ] PS5 9Ve 55'79% z32918'F 051 588
10$°008'y 56F'008'Y zho'esziz 9Zr'0e9’sT 786'5K6'ST L22°9eT'6L 899826y 82Z°159°L1 G0B'TEO'SL 9¥0°Z0E's5 ¢
- - - - - . TLE'BPYbSL 38¢'089'2E2 £04'299°'2 £O¥* 126068
- - - - - - - 221857 L LZ1°8SH'L
129'410'82 £P9'LLZ'Y 090'£96° rer'6LZ's 762'268'C 619'€6¥'S6 896251 9L 9r6'562'08 208'$8Z' 1427 L0 g¥5'0L 9
- - - - - B2 TP LLL'E £29°30Z°F VHE4SE L YT6¥SL8
- - - - . - - - L6E'L98 165298
So¥'F 99p'y - - 0z 252 :T4" 2] [44 S5¥'5
$or'pSe 0iv's ze0'c0lL Lo8'ys 6158 zz5'ee awLEL §34'9 zl's 960209
Ler'sy 1924'692'Y BZL'LEL'T §92'088'C Iot'080'2 ey LIV L) 6L0'Z1L8's oze'sie's Br9'sT0'9 paL'zIT'ey
- - - - - 081'5.42°89 . av0'cL9'e9l 98z'sz8'cLE Vg LSy
- - - - . - - - or0'seT VY 0¥0's8T' Y
. - - - - 668'9£0'9 679'658'Y 068°¢LT'Y LEDZBLY SLG'HEL'ET
LLE'ELgaz : 899'9ZL'¢ me.n 15T 345'9LL'L 9cL'sze'L ve0's1e 715'952 0s0'yst Fry' oLt
{000, L) sasdny)
E-71-EFY igaa | SYIUOWH syyuo
siea ) DL 2A0QY Ol 01§ 43A0 SIB3A G O) L 49AD SIBAL £ O1ZISAQ SJedA Z 01 | J8AD o1 SUUGI 9 1940 801 ¢ 1880 £ oty A yuow L oydn el
1702

$J955€ 4O UOJENEAS UO IIKag
Wead papiwasup / pateudosddeun
Junozoe [eydes a21yo pesy

SIASSE JaN

SaMNGe SO

19U - SanIQRI X2} paLa(
SUNCSE 1BUYI0 pur susodag
sBumoriog

alqeded sig

sagert

S}asse Jag0

JaU - $1955€ X} pavae(

sjosse a|qibuey

S19558 paxiy

SIOUBAPY

SjUBUISBAU|

suonngsy Jenuauy o) Bupua

SHUEQ JAYJ0 YIm SBaUR[R]

syueq AInseas) YIM SeoURleq pue yses
S1958Y

51965€ JO UONEN[RASL LD 1OYS0
woud papwaiun /paeudosddeun
JUNODDE [ENDED 30130 PEDH

5asse 18N

ngel ;210
13U - SanIgel XB pauaja]
SUNaooe Jaylo puk sysodag
sBumoniog

s|geded siig

sapqert

$1955€ JaULD

18U - $]95SE X2 p3us)RQ

s1asse ayqibusy]

$)1asSe paxld

SIUBADY

S)UALSIAU|

suounsy [eueLy o) Siipua

S3UEQ S0 UM S3oueleg

s)uBqg AINSEDL) M SAOURIEq PUB YSED
51358y

SayDURIG DY) JO SBIINIGEIl PUE SJ9SSE ayl JO SHIINEW pajoadXa Uo pased - SaIIGEl PUE §19S51 JO SaljlInieW

4 4 4



44

45

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSULE

7 ) MAR 777
The financial statements were authorized forissueon by the Chief Executive Officer and Head of
Finance of the Branches.

GENERAL

Comparative infermation has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,
wherever necessary to facilitate comparison.

-

g2y

Head of Binance

Chief Execufive Officer



